
CACHE COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
January 08, 2008 

   
         
The Cache County Council convened in a regular session on January 08, 2008 in the Cache 
County Council Chamber at 199 North Main, Logan, Utah.  
        
ATTENDANCE:         
Chairman:   John Hansen   
Vice Chairman:  H. Craig Petersen 
Council Members:  Brian Chambers, Darrel Gibbons, Kathy Robison & Gordon Zilles.   
    Cory Yeates, absent.  
County Executive:  M. Lynn Lemon       
County Clerk:  Jill N. Zollinger 
County Deputy Attorney:   Don Linton 
 
The following individuals were also in attendance:  Garth Day, Bart Esplin, Bob Fotheringham, Jeff 
Gilbert, Sharon L. Hoth, Sheriff Lynn Nelson, David Nielsen, Pat Parker, Gary Roberts, Josh Runhaar, 
Jim Smith, Zan Summers, Media: Kim Burgess (Herald Journal).    
 
OPENING REMARKS AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 
Council member Robison gave the opening remarks and led those present in the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA
 
The agenda was approved as written.   
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
ACTION: Motion by Council member Gibbons to approve the minutes of the  
December 11, 2007 Council meeting as written.  Robison seconded the motion.   
The vote was unanimous, 5-0.  Yeates & Zilles absent.   
 
REPORT OF THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE: M. LYNN LEMON  
  
APPOINTMENTS:  
Nadine Hall   Cache County Library Board 
Noble Erickson  Roads Special Service District Board 
E. Gordon Kirby  Roads Special Service District Board 
Wayne R. Cardon  Roads Special Service District Board 
 
Poll Workers for the February 5, 2008 Western States Presidential Primary Election 
 

(Attachment 1) 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Vice Chairman Petersen to approve the recommended 
appointments.  Gibbons seconded the motion.  The vote was unanimous, 5-0.  Yeates & 
Zilles absent. 
 



Cache County Council 
01-08-2008 
 
WARRANTS:  The warrants for the periods 12-08-2007 to 12-14-2007 and 12-14-2007 to 12-
20-2007 were given to the Clerk for filing. 
 
OTHER ITEMS
 

  North American Weather Consultants Cloud Seeding Report – Executive Lemon 
reported Cache County’s snow water content was 70% of normal as of January 1, 2008 
and the water year precipitation was 78% of normal. 

 
  Road Tax Collection – Executive Lemon said the collection of this tax will begin on  

April 1, 2008.  Lemon distributed Section 59-12-1702 of the County Option Sales and 
Use Tax for Transportation Act and indicated there is mention of the Council of 
Governments consisting of the County Governing Body and Mayors.  Lemon said he will 
ask the County Attorney to clarify the definition of the County Governing Body.  The 
County Council of Governments must develop a priority list of projects and submit to the 
County Council.  Only one priority list per year may be submitted.  Lemon asked Jeff 
Gilbert, CMPO, to explain the maps in Council members’ packets. 

 
Gilbert noted the maps are color coded with the colored roads being eligible to be 
funded and roads that are not yet built are also eligible. 

 
Council member Zilles joined the meeting. 
 

Gilbert indicated the county can request UDOT to reclassify a road as traffic develops 
and changes.   
 
Lemon said that Logan City is interested in having several projects considered for the 
priority list. 

 
ITEMS OF SPECIAL INTEREST 
 

 Employee of the Month for the month of January was presented to Dennis Gehrke of 
the Cache County Sheriff’s Office by Jim Smith.   

 
 Introduction of Water Manager – Bob Fotheringham presented himself to the Council 

and indicated he is originally from Cedar City, but has lived in Cache Valley for thirty-four 
years.  He presently has an office in the lower level of the Historic Courthouse. 

 
Fotheringham presented an overview of what he feels needs to be the focus of his 
position as Water Manager – to secure, preserve and protect Cache Valley water. 
 
Council member Zilles asked Fotheringham to research the water shares/rights that 
used to exist on the County Fairgrounds property with the intention of utilizing that water, 
if possible. 
 
Council member Petersen said he hoped Fotheringham would also be a resource for the 
valley municipalities’ water issues and concerns.   

 
 
 

 2



Cache County Council 
01-08-2008 
 
PENDING ACTION 
 

 Ordinance No. 2007-05 – Agricultural Subdivisions (NO ACTION TAKEN) 
 
INITIAL PROPOSAL FOR CONSIDERATION OF ACTION 
 

• Resolution No. 2008-01 – Intent to arrange for short-term financing to 
accommodate the anticipated operating capital deficits by the issuance of tax and 
revenue anticipation notes (“Trans”) as a participant in the Utah Association of  
Counties (“UAC”) combined cash flow borrowing program (The “UAC 
PROGRAM”), and related matters – Lemon noted this action is taken each year. 

 
(Attachment 2) 

 
ACTION:  Motion by Vice Chairman Petersen to waive the rules and approve Resolution 
No. 2008-01–Intent to arrange for short-term financing to accommodate the anticipated 
operating capital deficits by the issuance of  tax and revenue anticipation notes (“Trans”) 
as a participant in the Utah Association of  Counties (“UAC”) combined cash flow 
borrowing program (The “UAC PROGRAM”), and related matters .  Gibbons seconded 
the motion.  The vote was unanimous, 6-0.  Yeates absent. 
 

• Resolution No. 2008-02 – Setting Fees for the Cache County Fairgrounds – 
Executive Lemon explained the Ad Hoc Fairgrounds Committee has developed a set of 
proposed deposits and fees.  The Committee also recommends implementing the use of 
credit cards for deposits to streamline the billing and collecting.  

 
(Attachment 3) 

 
Tape 1, Side B 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Gibbons to waive the rules and approve Resolution 
No. 2008-02-Setting Fees for the Cache County Fairgrounds.  Robison seconded the 
motion.  The vote was unanimous, 6-0.  Yeates absent. 
 
Council member Chambers asked if there is a heated building at the Fairgrounds that might be 
used by the Sub for Santa group in late November through December 15.  Bart Esplin indicated 
that there is only one heated building and it is too small and would not be suitable. 
 

• Resolution No. 2008-03 – Approving and authorizing the Executive to execute a 
third amended Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with other members of Utah 
Counties Insurance Pool, relating to the establishment, funding and operation of 
Utah Counties Insurance Pool – Lemon said the terms of the board members are now 
four years instead of two years.  Petersen asked about the phrase “Board of County 
Council” and Lemon said the words “Board of” will be stricken.  Petersen also noted that 
the title “Commission Chair” should be replaced with “County Executive.”  Lemon 
agreed. 

 
(Attachment 4) 

 

 3



Cache County Council 
01-08-2008 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Vice Chairman Petersen to waive the rules and approve Resolution 
No. 2008-03-Approving and authorizing the Executive to execute a third amended 
Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with other members of Utah Counties Insurance Pool, 
relating to the establishment, funding and operation of Utah Counties Insurance Pool.  
Zilles seconded the motion.  The vote was unanimous, 6-0.  Yeates absent. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 Discussion – Salaries for Executive and Sheriff – Council member Zilles invited Jim 
Smith to address the Council.  Council member Gibbons said he feels it is inappropriate            
to discuss only the salaries of two elected officials and the Council should address the 
salaries of all elected officials. 

 
Jim Smith reminded the Council that nine years ago it was determined that Cache 
County was significantly behind in salaries as compared with comparable positions in 
other counties.  It was determined that over a period of time the salaries would be 
gradually brought up to fair market level.  During the last two to three years, the Council 
has been supportive with salary increases, but Cache County still lags well behind in 
salary amounts. 
 
Council members asked Smith to prepare a presentation for the January 22, 2008 
Council meeting that will show salary comparisons with other counties for all Cache 
County employees and elected officials. 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 
 
Darrel Gibbons reported that citizen referendums have stalled the Box Elder Regional Landfill 
project and he will keep the Council informed as the matter proceeds.   
 
Gibbons asked that Council member assignments for 2008 be on the January 22, 2008 agenda. 
 
Gordon Zilles stated that the AG Subdivision Committee needs to meet.  Gibbons asked to be 
replaced on that committee. 
 
Craig Petersen noted that the RAPZ Tax process will be starting soon and needs to be on the 
agenda in the near future.   
 
Petersen also indicated there is a fifth Tuesday in January and proposed the following topics for 
a joint council meeting with Logan City:  New Logan Council members, change in the ordinance 
in regard to the zoo and RAPZ tax and the new road tax.  Petersen also asked that a planning 
proposal from Envision Utah be on the January 22, 2008 Council meeting agenda as well as the 
joint council meeting agenda on January 29, 2008.  Pat Parker said Logan City Council Chair 
Tami Pyfer has requested a joint council meeting, too.  Clerk Zollinger reminded the Council that 
Early Voting will be going on in the multipurpose room on January 29 and it will not be available 
for the joint council meeting. 
 
Petersen suggested the Council go out to dinner for a Council social after the joint council 
meeting. 
 

 4



Cache County Council 
01-08-2008 
 
Kathy Robison said the Homeless Task Force Committee will be conducting a count on 
January 31, 2008. 
 
Chairman John Hansen indicated he received a call from a citizen asking if he must place the 
blue recycling container in front of his property even if he doesn’t use it.  Executive Lemon 
replied that the citizen does not have to use his blue recycling container, but he will still be 
charged the recycling fee. 
 
Hansen also asked where to refer citizens concerned with clearing the snow from roads.  
Lemon said they could call him and he would notify the Road Department. 
 
The Council meeting adjourned at 6:32 p.m. 
        
 
 
 
 
  
  
                                                              _____________________________                                     
ATTEST: Jill N. Zollinger    APPROVAL: John Hansen 
                County Clerk                          Council Chairman 
 
 
 

                 
 
 

 5








































































	01-08-08.pdf
	OTHER BUSINESS

	01-08-08 attachments

